

ENGROSSED HOUSE
BILL NO. 1588

BY: HAMILTON (James) and
CROCKER of the HOUSE

and

DICKERSON of the SENATE

(REVENUE AND TAXATION - AMENDING SECTIONS 161,
162, 163, 165, 166 AND 167, CHAPTER 162, O.S.L.
1988 - AD VALOREM TAXATION -

EFFECTIVE DATES)

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. AMENDATORY Section 161, Chapter 162, O.S.L.
1988, is amended to read as follows:

Section 161. Section 11, Chapter 356, O.S.L. 1985 (68 O.S.
Supp. ~~1987~~ 1990, Section 24304.1), shall be recodified as Section
3101 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a
duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24305, as last
amended by Section 17, Chapter 339, O.S.L. 1990 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990,
Section 24305), shall be recodified as Section 3102 of Title 68 of
the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in
numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24306, ~~as amended by Section 4,~~
~~Chapter 195, O.S.L. 1984 (68 O.S. Supp. 1987, Section 24306)~~ as last
amended by Section 4, Chapter 63, O.S.L. 1990 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990,
Section 24306), shall be recodified as Section 3103 of Title 68 of
the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in
numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24306.1, shall be recodified as
Section 3104 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is

created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24311, shall be recodified as Section 3105 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24312, as last amended by Section 9 of ~~Enrolled House Bill No. 1806 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 80, O.S.L. 1988~~ (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24312), shall be recodified as Section 3106 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created as duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24313, shall be recodified as Section 3107 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24313.1, shall be recodified as Section 3108 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24314, shall be recodified as Section 3109 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24315, shall be recodified as Section 3110 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24316, as amended by Section 6, Chapter 195, O.S.L. 1984 ~~(68 O.S. Supp. 1987~~ 1990, Section 24316), shall be recodified as Section 3111 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24317, shall be recodified as Section 3112 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24318, shall be recodified as Section 3113 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24319, shall be recodified as Section 3114 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24320, shall be recodified as Section 3115 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24321, shall be recodified as Section 3116 of

Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24322, as amended by Section 3, Chapter 295, O.S.L. 1984 (68 O.S. Supp. ~~1987~~ 1990, Section 24322), shall be recodified as Section 3117 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24323, as amended by Section 4, Chapter 295, O.S.L. 1984 (68 O.S. Supp. ~~1987~~ 1990, Section 24323), shall be recodified as Section 3118 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24323.1, shall be recodified as Section 3119 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24324, shall be recodified as Section 3120 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24325, shall be recodified as Section 3121 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24326, shall be recodified as Section 3122 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24327, shall be recodified as Section 3123 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24328, shall be recodified as Section 3124 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24329, shall be recodified as Section 3125 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24330, shall be recodified as Section 3126 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24331, as amended by Section 5, Chapter 295, O.S.L. 1984 (68 O.S. Supp. ~~1987~~ 1990, Section 24331), shall be recodified as Section 3127 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68

O.S. 1981, Section 24332, shall be recodified as Section 3128 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24333, shall be recodified as Section 3129 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24334, shall be recodified as Section 3130 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24335, shall be recodified as Section 3131 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24336, shall be recodified as Section 3132 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24337, shall be recodified as Section 3133 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24338, shall be recodified as Section 3134 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24339, shall be recodified as Section 3135 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24340, shall be recodified as Section 3136 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24341, shall be recodified as Section 3137 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24342, shall be recodified as Section 3138 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24343, shall be recodified as Section 3139 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24344, shall be recodified as Section 3140 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24345, shall be recodified as

Section 3141 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24346, shall be recodified as Section 3142 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24347, shall be recodified as Section 3143 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24348, shall be recodified as Section 3144 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24349, shall be recodified as Section 3145 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24350, shall be recodified as Section 3146 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24351, shall be recodified as Section 3147 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24400, shall be recodified as Section 3148 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24401, shall be recodified as Section 3149 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24402, shall be recodified as Section 3150 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24403, shall be recodified as Section 3151 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24404, shall be recodified as Section 3152 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering.

SECTION 2. AMENDATORY Section 162, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, is amended to read as follows:

Section 162. Section 1 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L.~~

1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.5), shall be recodified as Section 3401 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. Section 2 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.6)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3402 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. Section 3 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.7)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3403 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. Section 4 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.8)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3404 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. Section 5 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.9)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3405 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. Section 6 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L. 1988, as amended by Section 13, Chapter 339, O.S.L. 1990 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.10)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3406 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. Section 7 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1698 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 132, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24302.11)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3407 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering.

SECTION 3. AMENDATORY Section 163, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, is amended to read as follows:

Section 163. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2482, shall be recodified as Section 3001 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2483, as amended by Section 10 of ~~Enrolled House Bill No. 1935 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature, Chapter 90, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 2483)~~, shall be recodified as Section 3002 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2484, as ~~amended by Section 1, Chapter 34, O.S.L. 1985 (68 O.S. Supp. 1987, Section 2484)~~ last amended by Section 1, Chapter 135, O.S.L. 1989 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 2484), shall be recodified as Section 3003 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2485, shall be recodified as Section 3004 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2486, shall be recodified as Section 3006 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2487, shall be recodified as Section 3007 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2488, shall be recodified as Section 3008 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2489, shall be recodified as Section 3009 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2490, shall be recodified as Section 3010 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2491, shall be recodified as Section 3011 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2492, shall be recodified as Section 3012 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2493,

shall be recodified as Section 3013 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2494, as amended by Section 1 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1626 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature,~~ Chapter 77, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 2494), shall be recodified as Section 3014 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2495, shall be recodified as Section 3015 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2496, shall be recodified as Section 3016 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2497, as last amended by Section 11 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1935 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature,~~ Chapter 90, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 2497), shall be recodified as Section 3017 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2498, as amended by Section 12 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1935 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature,~~ Chapter 90, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 2498), shall be recodified as Section 3018 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2499, shall be recodified as Section 3019 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24100, as last amended by Section 13 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1935 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature,~~ Chapter 90, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24100), shall be recodified as Section 3020 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24101, shall be recodified as Section 3021 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24102, shall be recodified as

Section 3022 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24103, shall be recodified as Section 3023 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24104, as amended by Section 154 ~~of this act~~, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24104), shall be recodified as Section 3024 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24105, shall be recodified as Section 3025 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24106, as amended by Section 155 ~~of this act~~, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24106), shall be recodified as Section 3026 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24107, shall be recodified as Section 3027 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24108, shall be recodified as Section 3028 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24109, shall be recodified as Section 3029 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24110, shall be recodified as Section 3030 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24111, shall be recodified as Section 3031 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24112, as last amended by Section 5, Chapter 221, O.S.L. 1990 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 24112), shall be recodified as Section 3032 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 24113, shall be recodified as Section 3033 of

Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes, unless there is created a duplication in numbering.

SECTION 4. AMENDATORY Section 165, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, is amended to read as follows:

Section 165. 68 O.S. 1981, Sections 2401, 2402, 2403, as last amended by Section ~~151 of this act~~ 1, Chapter 63, O.S.L. 1989, 2404, 2404.1, 2404.2, 2404.3, 2404.4, 2404.5, 2405, as last amended by Section ~~1, Chapter 35, O.S.L. 1985~~ 84, Chapter 264, O.S.L. 1990, 2405.1, Section 1, Chapter 341, O.S.L. 1985, 2406, 2407, 2407.1, as last amended by Section ~~1, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985~~ 2, Chapter 314, O.S.L. 1988, 2408, 2409.1, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 63, O.S.L. 1990, 2410, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985, 2411, 2412, 2413, 2414, 2415, 2416, as amended by Section 1, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1983, 2417, 2418, 2419, 2420, as amended by Section 1, Chapter 24, O.S.L. 1989, 2421, 2422, 2423, 2424, 2425, 2426, 2427, as amended by Section 1, Chapter 63, O.S.L. 1985, Section 1, Chapter 65, O.S.L. 1984, as last amended by Section 6 of ~~Enrolled House Bill No. 1806 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature~~, Chapter 80, O.S.L. 1988, Section 6, Chapter 298, O.S.L. 1984, 2428, 2429, 2430, 2431, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1989, 2432, 2433, 2434, 2435, as amended by Section 1, Chapter 152, O.S.L. 1989, 2436, 2437, 2439, 2440, 2441, 2442, as amended by Section ~~13, Chapter 275, O.S.L. 1983~~ last amended by Section 1, Chapter 258, O.S.L. 1988, 2443, 2444, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 258, O.S.L. 1988, 2445, 2446, 2447, 2448, 2449, 2450, 2451, 2452, 2453, as amended by Section 3, Chapter 258, O.S.L. 1988, 2454, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 152, O.S.L. 1989, 2455, as amended by Section 3, Chapter 152, O.S.L. 1989, 2456, 2458, 2459, as last amended by Section 3, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985, 2460, as last amended by Section ~~4, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985~~ 3, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1989, 2461, 2462, as ~~amended by Section 5, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985~~ last amended by Section 4, Chapter 152, O.S.L. 1989,

2463, as ~~amended by Section 6, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985~~ last amended by Section 1, Chapter 212, O.S.L. 1990, 2463.1, 2464, as amended by Section 7, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985, 2465, as amended by Section 8, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985, 2466, 2467, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 15, O.S.L. 1987, 2468, 2469, 2470, 2471, 2472, 2473, as amended by Section 9, Chapter 126, O.S.L. 1985, 2474, 2475, 2476, 2477, 2478, 2479, 2479.1, 2480, 2481, 2481.1, as last amended by Section 152 ~~of this act~~, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, 2481.2, 2481.3, 2481.5, 2481.6, 2481.8, 2481.9, 2481.10, 2481.11, 24200, 24201, 24202, 24203, 24204, 24205, 24206, 24207, 24208, 24209, 24210, 24211, 24212, 24213, 24214, 24215, 24216, 24217, 24218, 24219, 24220, 24227, 24228, 24229, 24230, 24231, 24232, 24233, 24237, 24303, as ~~amended by Section 3, Chapter 195, O.S.L. 1984~~ last amended by Section 1, Chapter 76, O.S.L. 1989, Section 20, Chapter 253, O.S.L. 1984, as amended by Section 7 ~~of Enrolled House Bill No. 1806 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature~~, Chapter 80, O.S.L. 1988, Section 21, Chapter 253, O.S.L. 1984, as ~~amended by Section 8 of Enrolled House Bill No. 1806 of the 2nd Session of the 41st Oklahoma Legislature~~ last amended by Section 1, Chapter 274, O.S.L. 1989, 5001, 5002, as ~~amended by Section 1, Chapter 298, O.S.L. 1984~~ last amended by Section 3, Chapter 314, O.S.L. 1988, 5003, as ~~amended by Section 2, Chapter 298, O.S.L. 1984~~ last amended by Section 4, Chapter 314, O.S.L. 1988, 5004, 5005, 5006, 5007, 5008, as amended by Section 5, Chapter 314, O.S.L. 1988, and 5009 (68 O.S. Supp. ~~1987~~ 1990, Sections 2403, 2405, 2405.2, 2407.1, 2410, 2416, 2427, 2427.2, 2442, 2459, 2460, 2462, 2463, 2464, 2465, 2467, 2473, 2481.1, 24303, 5002 and 5003), are hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. AMENDATORY Section 166, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, is amended to read as follows:

Section 166. 68 O.S. 1981, Section 2481.4, as last amended by Section ~~153 of this act~~ 5, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1989 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Section 2481.4), is hereby repealed.

SECTION 6. AMENDATORY Section 167, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, is amended to read as follows:

Section 167. ~~Sections 148 and 149 of this act~~ Section 148, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, as amended by Section 4, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1989, and Section 149, Chapter 162, O.S.L. 1988, as amended by Section 6, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1989 (68 O.S. Supp. 1990, Sections 2462.1 and 2481.12), are hereby repealed.

SECTION 7. Sections 1 through 4 and 6 of this act shall become effective January 1, 1992.

SECTION 8. Section 5 of this act shall become effective July 1, 1992.

Passed the House of Representatives the 25th day of February, 1991.

Speaker of the House of Representatives

Passed the Senate the ____ day of _____, 1991.

President of the Senate